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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Hill-Brown Pusey House Community Center is located one 
block from the Public Square of Elizabethtown. Although, 
according to Haycraft,1 s History of Elizabethtown (1869), 
Hill arrived in Elizabethtown in 1818, Haycraft's rather 
unclear comments seem to indicate that Hill did not build 
this residence until several years later; the traditional 
and locally accepted date of construction is 1825. As 
restored in 1923, the main structure is a fairly typical 
Kentucky late Georgian-Federal house. The facade is of 
small-scaled Flemish-bond brick. The five bays are widely 
spaced; the second-story windows have 6-over-6 panes; the 
considerably larger windows of the first story have 9-over-9 
panes and slightly curved segmental lintels consisting of 
two rows of headers. The basement window openings have 
similar arches of single stretchers. The central entrance 
doorway has narrow fluted pilasters, a horizontal cornice, and 
a rectangular transom. It is presently entered by means of 
a cement-coated stoop with iron railing. There is no archi­ 
tectural cornice. The narrow end-walls of this single-pile 
structure are unfenestrated and each has a single inset 
chimney in the center.

n
Some of the interior woodwork, door, and window frames, manteli 
and large wooden buttons at the sides of the windows to hold 
back curtains, are said to be original.

The "Pusey Room" to the left of the front of the house was rebu:. 
in 1923 from an earlier structure (perhaps one of Hill's 
additions for his hotel), utilizing some of the original 
brick. It is elaborately fireproof and is entered through 
a mantel from the main house.

A number of small one-story brick buildings were erected along 
the back of the property, presumably when Hill converted his 
residence into a hotel about 1850. These were connected to 
the main house by a two-story wing and by continuous galleries. 
They were rented as guest^ quarters, and it was in one of them 
that General Custer and his wife stayed in 1871-73. The 
galleries gave covered access to the dining room in the main 
house, where transient guests were also housed. All these 
outbuildings are now gone. The area of the site behind the 
Community Center forms part of the attractive Cunningham^ 
garden which was named in honor of the parents of Mrs. William 
Alien Pusey.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Aside from being a substantial and well-restored example of 
Kentucky Federal architecture, the Hill-Brown Pusey House has 
been associated with many interesting events and persons or 
prominence.

According to Samuel Haycraft, who lived across from the Hill- 
Pusey house for some 70 years, "About the year 1818, John Y. 
Hill, a tailor, emigrated from Virginia and followed his 
trade for a few years, but finding stitching too slow a 
business for a man of his active business habits, he commenced 
trading in horses. Having built a residence at the corner of 
Main and Poplar Streets and finding the horse trading did not 
profit, he then commenced burning brick and building houses... 
When he quit building, it was estimated that he had built 
about one-fourth of Elizabethtown. He was a popular man and 
was elected to the Legislature (from Hardin and Meade Counties 
in 1832-33). He was a man of untiring energy, none more so 
unless we except his wife, to whom he was married shortly 
after he built his residence. She was Rebecca D. Stone, now 
universally called Aunt Beck. (At an unspecified date, per­ 
haps about 1850,) Mr. Hill concluded to make some additions 
to his house and convert it into a hotel. No sooner said 
than done, the hotel opened under favorable auspices. Every­ 
thing was as neat as a pin, and when a traveler came he was 
politely met at the door by the landlord in his peculiar, 
complacent manner, armed and led into a sitting room, and the 
stranger felt as if he was in a gentleman's parlor. The place 
had no tavern smell about it, and if ever two little folks 
were found together who each played their part like clockwork, 
it was found in ^oha Y. Hill and his wife. They had a fine 
run of custom, and Aunt Beck's art of coffee making was spread 
far and wide. But Mr. Hill labored in the vocation too hard.
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Hardin County Records, Deed Book # 78, page 192.

Samuel Haycraft, A History of Elizabethtown, Kentucky., and Its
Surroundings (published in serial form in The Elizabethtown
News in 1869; collected and published in book form in 1921- 
22 by the Elizabethtown Women's Club; reprinted by the 
Hardin County Historical Society, Elizabethtown, 1960), 
pp. 81, 82, 84, 103.
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
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If he had commenced ten years sooner he would have accumulated 
a comfortable fortune. His valuable life came to a close by 
over-exertion. He died on the 1st day of August, 1855, and 
the town felt that a greater calamity could not have happened 
them. After his death and up to this day Aunt Beck has kept up 
the house and has proved herself to be a woman of extraordinary 
administrative ability. She frequently threatened to close her 
house and quit the business, but she has found that the only 
thing she does not know how to do and she cannot quit." 
(Haycraft, pages 81-82).

Among other prominent buildings in Elizabethtown, Hill built the 
Baptist (originally joint Baptist-Presbyterian) Church which 
still exists behind the Brown-Pusey house garden.

Twenty years later General George Armstrong Custer lived in one 
of the small brick structures at the rear of the Hill House 
while he was stationed in Elizabethtown with his regiment. 
Custer commanded a Union Army post at Elizabethtown from summer 
1871 till spring 1873. The post was one of many created in the 
hectic days following the Civil War in Southern and border 
states to control the Ku Klux Klan, break up illegal distilling, 
and enforce the reconstruction acts. Since there was no Klan 
activity and little illegal whiskey-making, Custer and two 
battalions of horse soldiers led a relatively quiet life. With 
time on his hands he concentrated on acquiring fine Kentucky 
thoroughbreds for his troops. The stay became so boring he 
requested a transfer to the Dakota Territory. A large crowd of 
Elizabethtown people gathered to see the general and his men 
loaded onto a special train. Custer and each man took with him 
a blooded Kentucky Thoroughbred. They were riding those same 
fine Kentucky mounts four months later when they met their 
destiny at the Little Big Horn.

In a letter from Custer to his wife before she joined him in 
Elizabethtown, he described the Hill House and its hostess: 
"I enjoy this old-fashioned hotel with its quaint landlady 
who is everything in one. The meals are not so dreadful; 
applesauce and hot biscuits at each meal and I have an appetite 
for both." (Merington, PP. 239-40)
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8. Significance (continued) Page Three

The Puseys were nephews of "Aunt Beck" Hill. They were Quakers 
whose family is said to have come to America with William Penn. 
Both William A. and Brown Pusey were prominent physicians; the 
former was president of the American Medical Association in 1923, 
The Browns, after whom several generations of Pusey males were 
named, were also leading citizens of the area. A grandfather 
of Dr. A. M. Pusey and Dr. Brown Pusey was among the earlier 
settlers and was killed at the battle of Blue Lick.

The Pusey family gave the house to the City of Elizabethtown in 
1923 to be used as a community center. A large assembly hall 
was added to one side and a small wing reconstructed as the 
Pusey Room for the display of mementoes of the family. A 
genealogical and historical library, dining room and kitchen are 
also located in the building, which is widely used by the 
community. Although the center is owned by a public trust, a 
private apartment is also located in the house on the second 
floor, the rent used for the upkeep of the center.
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9. Major Bibliographical References (continued) Page Two

Letters from the period of Ouster's stay in Elizabethtown survive 
mainly in Marguerite Merington, ed., The Custer Story, The Life 
and Intimate Letters of George A. Custer and his Wife Elizabeth 
(N.Y.: Devin-Adair Co., 1950); also quoted in The Elizabethtown 
News (June 24, 1921).

Theodore J. Crackel, "Ouster's Kentucky: General Armstrong Custer 
and Elizabethtown, Kentucky, 1871-1873," The Filson Club History 
Quarterly, XLVIII, 2 (Louisville, Ky., April, 1974), 144-55, 
including "Some Brief Bibliographic Notes (on Custer)."

Blueprints for the restoration and other materials relating to 
the house are preserved in the library of the Community Center.
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